
 

VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY, WI 

   NOTICE OF VILLAGE BOARD MEETING  

 

 

DATE:   Monday, July 29, 2024 

TIME:  5:00pm 

LOCATION: Village Hall, Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers 

  515 W. Kimberly Ave. 

  Kimberly, WI 54136  
 

Notice is hereby given that a Village Board meeting will be held on Monday, July 29, 2024 at the Village 
Hall. This meeting is open to the public. 

 

1) Call to Order 

2) Roll Call 

3) Moment of Silent Reflection, Pledge of Allegiance 

4) President’s Remarks  

5) Village Board presentation of the 2024 Marie Ruys Citizenship Award 

6) Approval of Minutes from the 07/22/24 meeting 

7) Unfinished Business 

a) None 

8) New Business 

a) Award Building Inspection Services Contract 

9) Public Participation 

10) Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Village Board Virtual Meeting Information 
 

Jul 29, 2024, 5:00 – 5:30 PM (America/Chicago) 
 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://meet.goto.com/432203909 

 
You can also dial in using your phone. 

Access Code: 432-203-909 
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679 

United States: +1 (571) 317-3116 
 
 

            
 

 
 
 

 

https://meet.goto.com/432203909
tel:+18668994679,,432203909
tel:+15713173116,,432203909
https://meet.goto.com/install


VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
07/22/2024 
 
A meeting of the Village Kimberly Board was called to order on Monday, July 22, 2024 at 
5:00pm in the Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers, 515 W. Kimberly Ave by President Kuen.  
 
Board Present:  President Chuck Kuen, Trustees Lee Hammen, Norb Karner, Mike 

Hruzek, Marcia Trentlage and Dave Hietpas 
Board Excused: Trustee Tom Gaffney  
Staff Present: Clerk-Treasurer Jennifer Weyenberg, Community Enrichment Director 

Holly Femal and Engineer Brad Werner 
 

President’s Remarks 
None 
 
Approval of Minutes from the 07-15-2024 Meeting 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Karner seconded the motion to approve the Village Board 
minutes from 07-15-2024. Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board. 
 
Unfinished Business 
None 
 
New Business 
Certified Survey Map, 424 S. Washington St, Parcel 250172700 
Trustee Trentlage moved, Trustee Hammen seconded the motion to approve the Certified 
Survey Map, 424 S. Washington St, Parcel 250172700.  This was recommended for 
approval from the Plan Commission and there was no discussion on this item. Motion 
carried by unanimous vote of the board. The resulting CSM creates two parcels so the 
existing warehouse building, and majority of the parking lot will be on Lot 2 while the 
existing former convenience store and a section of the parking lot will be in Lot 1. 
 
Special Event Permit Application for Slayer Sunset Showdown Baseball Tournament 
at Sunset Park on Aug. 23-25, 2024 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Karner seconded the motion to approve the Special 
Event Permit application for Slayer Sunset Showdown Baseball Tournament at Sunset Park 
on August 23-25, 2024 as presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board. 
 
Certificate of Payment #1 to Zignego Company in the amount of $103,102.55 for Blue 
Development Street Construction 
Trustee Trentlage moved, Trustee Hammen seconded the motion to approve the 
Certificate of Payment #1 to Zignego Company in the amount of $103,102.55 for Blue 
Development Street Construction for work performed through June 28, 2024 for the 
project.  Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board. 
 
 



2 
 

Public Participation 
None 
 
Adjournment 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Karner seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote at 5:04 pm. 

 
 
                                                                                        
__________________________ 

         Jennifer Weyenberg 
         Clerk-Treasurer 
 
Dated 07/23/24 
Approved by Village Board _______________ 



 
Village of Kimberly 

REQUEST FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION 
 
 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Building Inspection Services Contract 

REPORT PREPARED BY:     Danielle Block, Administrator/Director of Public Works 

REPORT DATE:  July 25, 2024 

ADMINISTRATOR'S REVIEW  /  COMMENTS: 
 
     No additional comments to this report   ________DLB______________ 
 
     See additional comments attached  _____________________________ 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Village sent a Request for Proposal for Building Inspection Services out to contractors, 
inspectors and consulting firms in June.  Proposals were due back on July 10, 2024.  The village 
received two proposals: MSA Professional Services, Inc. (MSA) and McMahon Engineers.  After 
reviewing the proposals, requesting further information as needed and reviewing references, staff 
recommends entering into a professional services contract with MSA.  This contract will include: 

• Building plan and permit review; 
• Permit issuance and tracking; 
• Commercial and residential building, HVAC, electrical and plumbing inspections; 
• Department of Safety and Professional Service (DSPS) delegation; 
• Final inspection and occupancy permits; 
• Real-time GIS inspection reporting; 
• Customer service by phone and email; 
• Updated permit fee schedule and permit fee tracking; 
• Other reports as requested (appraiser reporting, monthly Board reporting); 
• On site office hours at an interval to be determined. 

Attached are the firm proposals.  It is anticipated that the Village’s building permit fee schedule 
will be reviewed, and adjustments will be proposed to appropriately cover the cost of services.  
Several building permit fees will remain unchanged, but staff does anticipate an increase to some 
of the Village’s permit fees. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Approve entering into an agreement for professional building 
inspection services with MSA. 

 







































 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Building Inspection Services 
 

 
Prepared for  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OUTAGAMIE COUNTY | WISCONSIN 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JULY 10,2024 
 
 
Prepared By 

Kevin Bierce, Senior Public Safety Specialist 

Jeffrey R. Roemer, Public Safety Manager  

Proposal 

For Professional  

Consulting Services 

PUBLIC SAFETY & 
MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Building Inspection Services 
 

Prepared for  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OUTAGAMIE COUNTY | WISCONSIN 
 

Prepared By 

McMahon Associates, Inc.  
 

JULY 10, 2024 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
LETTER OF INTEREST  
 
QUALIFICATIONS  ...................................................................................................................................... Page 1 
 
METHODOLOGY  ....................................................................................................................................... Page 2 
 
SCOPE OF WORK  ...................................................................................................................................... Page 3 
 
PROJECT FEE / SCHEDULE  ........................................................................................................................ Page 4 
 
PROJECT TEAM / RESUMES  ...................................................................................................................... Page 5 
 
REFERENCES  ............................................................................................................................................. Page 7 
 
 

   

  

Proposal 
For Professional  

Consulting Services 

PUBLIC SAFETY &  

MUNICPAL MANGEMENT 



 

McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC.   1445 McMAHON DRIVE NEENAH, WI 54956  Mailing P.O. BOX 1025 NEENAH, WI 54957-1025 

PH 920.751.4200  FAX 920.751.4284  MCM@MCMGRP.COM  WWW.MCMGRP.COM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 10, 2024 
 
Village of Kimberly 
Attn: Danielle Block Administrator 
515 W. Kimberly Avenue 
Kimberly, WI 54136 
 
Dear Ms. Block, 
 
We are pleased to submit a proposal for Building Inspection Services for the Village of Kimberly. Our 
teams’ passion for Public Safety and working with Building Inspections provides the basis for our 
interest in submitting this proposal. McMahon Associates, Inc. (McMahon) is ready to work with the 
Village of Kimberly by providing building inspections, guidance, and recommendations. Municipal 
Consulting projects have become a major focus for McMahon. Similar work in the past has included 
departments such as the City of Kaukauna, Town of Clayton, and Villages of Pewaukee, Little Chute 
and Bear Creek.  
 
McMahon’s Public Safety & Municipal Management Group’s focus is on national and international 
public management consulting services.  Most of our clients are public sector entities: 
municipalities, counties, tribes, or special districts.  Our team of consultants are all senior level staff 
and are either current or former municipal management practitioners.  An important component of 
our approach is frequent communication with the Municipal and Tribal Administration. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. If you have any questions or desire to 
schedule a meeting where we can present our proposal in more detail and answer any questions, 
please feel free to contact me at 262-227-4227 or by email at kbierce@mcmgrp.com. We look 
forward to working with you on this important project!  
 
Respectfully, 
McMahon Associates, Inc. 
  
 
 
Kevin Bierce      Jeffrey R. Roemer 
Senior Public Safety Specialist   Public Safety Manager 
 
KB:kmh

mailto:kbierce@mcmgrp.com


BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 1  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 
 

 

 

 

McMahon provides building inspection services that are professional, and compliant with state and 

national building codes. Our consultants have served the inspection needs of municipalities 

throughout Wisconsin and remain very active with several building inspection organizations 

including:  

 

◼ The Southeast Wisconsin Building Officials Association 

◼ The National Fire Protection Association 

◼ The International Code Council. 

 
Our consultants possess in-depth knowledge of relevant aspects of public service, which includes 

administration, communications, organization, labor relations, human resources, economics, and 

standards.  

 

Project progress is measured against an established work plan, timetables, budget, and list of 

deliverables. Project methodology includes frequently scheduled progress meetings to discuss 

progress as well as new or unanticipated issues. The work plans are focused, coordinated, and 

logical. Project team members are also available throughout the duration of the project. 

  

 Qualifications 



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 2  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 

 Section 1 

Description of Firm & Project Team 

Our approach to this project requires a clear understanding of the current Inspection Department’s 

organization, staffing, operations, administration, planning, and related concerns. The key elements 

of our methodology include: 

◼ A clear understanding of the project background, complex issues involved, and the goals and 
objectives of the project. 

 

◼ A work plan that is comprehensive, well designed, practical, and provides for ample client 
input. 

 

◼ Sufficient resources and a commitment to successfully completing the project within the 
desired time frame and at a reasonable cost. 

 

Client Input 

To perform Building Inspection Consulting Services and make specific recommendations, it is critical 

that we receive quality information from officials, staff, and members of the Village of Kimberly. 

Accordingly, our approach includes regular meetings with the Inspection Department and Village of 

Kimberly Administration. 

 

Practical Recommendations 

Our goal is to provide you with recommendations that can be used now, and in the future, to 

improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Building Inspection Department during this 

transition. These recommendations need to be based on industry standards and legal 

considerations. 

 

Project Management 

A successful assessment and the provision of effective recommendations requires a special effort to 

ensure that all levels of the project receive adequate attention and those findings and 

recommendations are thoroughly coordinated. This is accomplished by the development and 

adherence to a project work plan, clear management team assignments and frequent 

communications with the Inspection Department and Village of Kimberly Administration. 

  

 Methodology 



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 3  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 

 

 

 

Project Kickoff  

Initial meetings will be held with the municipal project team to review the duties and 

responsibilities of McMahon during the term of this project.  

 

Management Team 
The McMahon team will consist of the Project Manager and the Inspection Team. They will meet 

initially to organize and plan the communications structure, the daily, weekly, and monthly work 

plan. This will be utilized to improve the effectiveness of current building inspection operations 

and administration and provide effective and efficient recommendations for the future. 

 

Reporting 

A management summary report will be provided to the Inspection Department monthly. This 

report will outline the building inspector consulting services, activities and actions that have 

taken place during this project.  

 

Availability 
Project team members are available throughout the duration of the project. There will be 

scheduled office time weekly. Project team member will need to utilize office space, have access 

to a phone, computer, and client software to support internal and external requests from 

customers while on site. 

 

Administration 

McMahon will manage the department inspection plan, goals, standards of performance, and 

strategic planning for the future of the department. 

 

Compliance 

McMahon will assist the Village of Kimberly in maintaining compliance with all current 

administrative rules and applicable standards, along with current departmental practices to 

ensure compliance with relevant legal guidelines and standards. 

  

  Scope of Work 



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 4  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Fee 

McMahon Associates, Inc. proposes to provide the Scope of Services described in this Proposal for 

the Building Inspection Services as follows: 

 Time & Expense estimated at: $4,000 to 8,000 per month 

 

Upon acceptance of this Proposal, McMahon will prepare an Agreement incorporating the Scope of 

Services and terms outlined here. All services will be provided in accordance with our General Terms 

& Conditions, dated May 10, 2024, which will be incorporated into the Agreement. 

 

Invoices will be sent every month based on the previous months’ time and expenses. 

 

Project Schedule 

McMahon has the staff available to begin this project immediately upon award.  The client’s 

inspection needs will dictate the weekly schedule. 
  

 Project Fee / Schedule 



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 5  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 

 

 

 

Personnel assigned to this project are selected from McMahon Associates, Inc. (McMahon).  The 
Project Manager supervises the project team and clerical personnel support the team. The 
combined resources assure that the client receives the best possible combination of professional 
attention. 
 
Kevin I. Bierce – Senior Public Safety Specialist 
Kevin will serve as Project Manager and will be the key contact throughout the project. He will 
oversee, direct, coordinate and control all work that is done on the project. He will also be 
responsible for the content and quality of the project and ensure that the project is completed 
according to the timeline established. Kevin has been the Fire Chief for the City of Pewaukee Fire 
Department since 2008 where he oversees all emergency operations.  Prior to becoming Chief, he 
worked in various positions to include Assistant Chief, Division Chief of Prevention, Captain and 
Lieutenant.  As Division Chief of Inspections, Kevin worked to combine the building inspection 
department of two communities under the authority of the Fire Department to create the Building 
Services Division overseeing building, zoning, and plan review of all structures in the Village and 
City of Pewaukee.  He is a licensed building official and serves by appointment of the Governor of 
Wisconsin on the Wisconsin Commercial Building Code Council, responsible for the oversight and 
review of the Wisconsin Building Codes. 
 
Dick A. Biese – Public Safety Specialist 
Dick will assist the Project Team and has over 40 years of plumbing experience in completing 
projects on time and under budget. He is skilled in interpreting blueprints and preparing project 
bids. Dick possesses a strong work ethic and desire to provide quality workmanship to commercial 
customers. He has experience with installing new fixtures and piping systems for renovations. 
 
Charles M. Dwyer – Public Safety Specialist 
Charlie will act as commercial electric inspector. He has over 40 years of commercial, residential, 
and industrial electrical experience, plus 20 years’ experience as an inspector. 
 
David J. Vander Velden – Public Management Specialist 
Dave will act as UDC Inspector and has 30 years of experience in building inspections, street 
commissioning and home improvements. 

 
Randy Romens – Public Safety Specialist 
Randy is curretnly a full time building, HVAC and plumbing inpsector for the City of Pewaukee. His 
experience as a Master Plumber and business owner has helped to strengthen our building 
inspection capabilities and services.  
 
 

 

 

 Project Team / Resumes 



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 6  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

Brett A. Jensen – Public Safety Specialist 

Brett has over 20 years as a UDC HVAC inspector and a UDC Construction Certification. Brett also has over 

10 years as a UDC Electrical inspector, UDC Plumbing and a POWTS Certification. He is a member of the 

Northeast Wisconsin Building Inspector’s Association. Brett was also a licensed EMT in the past. Brett 

demonstrates quick, effective decision making and problem-solving skills in a wide range of high stress 

situations. He is highly knowledgeable in maintenance and mechanical skills such as carpentry, electrical 

and painting. 

Kevin K. Kloehn – Public Safety Specialist 
Kevin has over 31 years of experience in the Fire, Emergency Medical, and Emergency 
Management field. He recently retired as a Fire Chief of a consolidated fire department in 
Wisconsin. Before his position as Fire Chief, he worked as a Shift Commander/Battalion Chief, 
Captain, and Driver. Prior to becoming a career Fire Chief, Kevin worked as a Fire Chief for a 
Volunteer Department for 8 years in which he consolidated two (2) Fire Departments within a 
Community. Kevin has experience on two (2) major Consolidation Projects, Strategic Planning, 
Emergency Operations Planning, and developing Training Plans for new Firefighters. 
 
Jeffrey R. Roemer – Public Safety Manager 
Jeff will assist the Project Team with review of project specific information and processes as well as 
advise on findings and recommendations. He has over 35 years of experience in public safety and is 
currently Public Safety Manager of the Public Safety & Municipal Management Group for McMahon.  
He is a certified public manager and has been providing full-time public safety management 
consulting for the last 24 years.  He worked as a Fire Chief, Police Chief, EMS Director, and 
Emergency Management Director before moving into public management consulting. He has 
worked with over 300 public safety clients nationwide and internationally. 
 

 
 

  



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 7  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 

 

 

 

 
TOWN OF ALGOMA 
Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 
townadmin@townofalgoma.org 
15 North Oakwood Road 
Oshkosh, WI 54904 
920-235-3789 
 
TOWN OF BLACK WOLF 
Frank Frasseto, Town Chairman 
frank@townofblackwolf.com 
380 E. Black Wolf Avenue 
Oshkosh, WI 54902 
920-688-1404 
 
VILLAGE OF ALLOUEZ 
Trevor Fuller, Director of Planning and Community Development 
Trevor.fuller@villageofalluezwi.gov 
1900 Libel Street 
Green Bay, WI 54301 
920-448-2800 
 
VILLAGE OF GREENVILLE 
Michael Brown, Community & Economic Development Director 
mbrown@greenvillewi.gov 
W6860 Parkview Drive 
Greenville, WI 54942 
920-757-5151 
 
VILLAGE OF LITTLE CHUTE 
Dave Kittel, community Development Director 
David.kittel@littlechutewi.org 
108 W. Main Street 
Little Chute, WI 54140 
920-422-5801 
 

References 



BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICE PROPOSAL 

Page | 8  

Professional Consulting Services 
 

 
 
CITY OF KAUKAUNA 
Anthony Penterman, Mayor 
mayor@kaukauna-wi.org 
144 W. 2nd Street 
Kaukauna WI 54130 
920-766-6310 
 
TOWN OF CLAYTON 
Kelly Wisnefske, Town Administrator 
townadministrator@townofclayton.net 
8348 County Road T 
Larsen, WI 54947 
920-836-2007 
 
VILLAGE OF BEAR CREEK 
Chris Wenner, Village President 
chris.wenner70@gmail.com 
109 Prospect Street 
Bear Creek, WI 54922 
715-752- 4356 
 



 Page 1 of 2 

McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC. MAY 10, 2024 

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS 

1. STANDARD OF CARE  

1.1 Services: McMahon Associates, Inc. (McMahon) shall perform services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by 
engineers/architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. McMahon shall provide its services as expeditiously 
as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. 

1.2 Client’s Representative: McMahon intends to serve as the Client's professional representative for those services, as defined in this Agreement, and to provide 
advice and consultation to the Client as a professional. Any opinions of probable project costs, approvals and other decisions made by McMahon for the 
Client are rendered based on experience and qualifications and represent our professional judgment. This Agreement does not create, nor does it intend to 
create a fiduciary relationship between the parties. 

1.3 Warranty, Guarantees, Terms and Conditions: McMahon does not provide a warranty or guarantee, expressed or implied, for professional services. This 
Agreement or contract for services is not subject to the provisions of uniform commercial codes. Similarly, McMahon will not accept those terms and 
conditions offered by the Client in its purchase order, requisition or notice of authorization to proceed, except as set forth herein or expressly accepted in 
writing. Written acknowledgment of receipt, or the actual performance of services subsequent to receipt, of any such purchase order, requisition or notice 
of authorization to proceed is specifically deemed not to constitute acceptance of any terms or conditions contrary to those set forth herein. 

2. PAYMENT AND COMPENSATION  

2.1 Invoices: McMahon will bill the Client monthly with net payment due in 30-days. Past due balances shall be subject to an interest charge of 1.0% per month. 
Client is responsible for interest charges on past due invoices, collection agency fees and attorney fees incurred by McMahon to collect all monies due 
McMahon. Client is responsible for all taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses. McMahon and Client hereby acknowledge that 
McMahon has and may exercise lien rights on subject property. 

2.2 Reimbursables: Expenses incurred by McMahon for the project including, but not limited to, equipment rental will be billed to the Client at cost plus 10% 
and sub-consultants at cost plus 12%. When McMahon, after execution of an Agreement, finds that specialized equipment must be purchased to provide 
special services, the cost of such equipment will be added to the agreed fee for professional services only after the Client has been notified and agrees to 
these costs. 

2.3 Changes: The stated fees and Scope of Services constitute McMahon’s professional opinion of probable cost of the fees and tasks required to perform the 
services as defined. For those projects involving conceptual or process development services, activities often cannot be fully defined during initial planning. 
As the project progresses, facts uncovered may reveal a change in direction, which may alter the Scope. Changes by the Client during design may necessitate 
re-design efforts. McMahon will promptly inform the Client in writing of such situations so changes in this Agreement can be negotiated, as required. 

2.4 Delays and Uncontrollable Forces: Costs and schedule commitments shall be subject to re-negotiation for delays caused by the Client's failure to provide 
specified facilities or information, or for force majeure delays caused by unpredictable occurrences, including without limitation, fires, floods, riots, strikes, 
unavailability of labor or materials, delays or defaults by suppliers of materials or services, process shutdowns, infectious diseases or pandemics, acts of God 
or the public enemy, or acts or regulations of any governmental agency. Temporary delay of services caused by any of the above, which results in additional 
costs beyond those outlined, may require re-negotiation of this Agreement. 

3. INSURANCE  

3.1 Limits: McMahon will maintain insurance coverage in the following amounts: 
Worker's Compensation .......................................................................................................................................... Statutory 
General Liability 

Bodily Injury - Per Incident/Annual Aggregate ....................................................................... $1,000,000 / $2,000,000 
Automobile Liability 

Bodily Injury ................................................................................................................................................ $1,000,000 
Property Damage ........................................................................................................................................ $1,000,000 

Professional Liability Coverage ............................................................................................................................. $2,000,000 

If the Client requires coverage or limits in addition to the above stated amounts, premiums for additional insurance shall be paid by the Client. 

McMahon’s liability to Client for any indemnity commitments, reimbursement of legal fees, or for any damages arising in any way out of performance of our 
contract or based on tort, breach of contract, or any other theory, is limited to ten (10) times McMahon’s fee not to exceed to $250,000.  

3.2 Additional Insureds: Upon request and to the extent permitted by law, McMahon shall cause the primary and excess or umbrella policies for Commercial 
General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Client as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by McMahon’s negligent acts or 
omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Client’s insurance policies and shall apply to both ongoing 
and completed operations. 

To the extent permitted by law, Client shall cause the contractor, if any, to include McMahon as an additional insured on contractor’s Commercial General 
Liability, Automobile Liability and Excess or Umbrella policies to include McMahon as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by 
contractor’s negligent acts or omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of McMahon’s insurance policies and 
shall apply to both ongoing and completed operations. 

4. CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

4.1 General: In the event of a dispute between the Client and McMahon arising out of or related to this Agreement, the aggrieved party shall notify the other 
party of the dispute within a reasonable time after such dispute arises. The Client and McMahon agree to first attempt to resolve the dispute by direct 
negotiation. 

4.2 Mediation: If an agreement cannot be reached by the Client and McMahon unresolved disputes shall be submitted to mediation per the rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The Client and McMahon shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. 

4.3 Binding Dispute Resolution: If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation the method of binding dispute resolution shall be litigation in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

  



 Page 2 of 2 

5. TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION  

5.1 Client: Termination of this Agreement by the Client shall be effective upon seven (7) day written notice to McMahon. The written notice shall include the 
reasons and details for termination; payment is due as stated in above Section 2. 

5.2 McMahon: If the Client defaults in any of the Agreements entered into between McMahon and the Client, or if the Client fails to carry out any of the duties 
contained in these Terms & Conditions, McMahon may, upon seven (7) days written notice, suspend its services without further obligation or liability to the 
Client unless, within such seven (7) day period, the Client remedies such violation to the reasonable satisfaction of McMahon. 

5.3 Suspension for Non-Payment: McMahon may, after giving 48-hours’ notice, suspend service under any Agreement until the Client has paid in full all amounts 
due for services rendered and expenses incurred. 

6. COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 

6.1 Instruments of Service: McMahon and its subconsultants shall be deemed the author and owner of their respective Instruments of Service (IOS), including 
the Drawings, Specifications, reports, and any computer modeling (BIM, etc.), and shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including 
copyrights. 

6.2 Licenses: McMahon grants to the Client a nonexclusive license to use McMahons’ IOS solely and exclusively for the purposes of constructing, using, and 
maintaining the project, provided that the Client substantially performs its obligations under this Agreement, including prompt payment of all sums due. 

6.3 Re-use: Use of IOS pertaining to this project by the Client for extensions of this project or on any other project shall be at the Client's sole risk and the Client 
agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless McMahon from all claims, damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees arising out of such re-use of the 
IOS by the Client or by others acting through the Client. 

7. AGREEMENT CONDITIONS 

7.1 The stipulated fee is firm for acceptance by the Client within 60-days from date of Agreement publication. 

7.2 Modifications: This Agreement, upon execution by both parties hereto, can be amended only by written instrument signed by both parties. 

7.3 Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s choice of law rules.  

7.4 Mutual Non-Assignment: The Client and McMahon, respectively bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal representatives to this 
Agreement. Neither the Client nor McMahon shall assign this Agreement without the written consent of the other.  

7.5 Severability: The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining provisions. If it is determined that any 
provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make 
that provision legal and enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the parties’ 
intensions and purposes in executing the Agreement. 

7.6 Third Party: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action, in favor of a third party against McMahon. 

8. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

8.1 Additional Client Services: The Client agrees to provide such legal, accounting and insurance counseling services as may be required for the project for the 
Client’s purpose. 

8.2 Means and Methods: McMahon is not responsible for direction or supervision of construction means, methods, techniques, sequence, or procedures of 
construction selected by contractors or subcontractors, or the safety precautions and programs incident to the work of the contractors or subcontractors. 

8.3 Purchase Orders: In the event the Client issues a purchase order or other instrument related to McMahon’s services, it is understood and agreed that such 
document is for Client's internal accounting purposes only and shall in no way modify, add to, or delete any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
If the Client does issue a purchase order, or other similar instrument, it is understood and agreed that McMahon shall indicate the purchase order number 
on the invoice(s) sent to the Client. 

8.4 Project Maintenance: The Client (or Owner if applicable) shall be responsible for maintenance of the structure, or portions of the structure, which have been 
completed and have been accepted for its intended use. All structures are subject to wear and tear, and environmental and man-made exposures. As a 
result, all structures require regular and frequent monitoring and maintenance to prevent damage and deterioration. Such monitoring and maintenance is 
the sole responsibility of the Client or Owner. McMahon shall have no responsibility for such issues or resulting damages. 

8.5 Consequential Damages: Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the other for any consequential damages 
incurred due to the fault of the other party, regardless of the nature of this fault or whether it was committed by the Client or the Design Professional, their 
employees, agents, subconsultants or subcontractors. Consequential damages include, but are not limited to, loss of use and loss of profit. 

8.6 Corporate Protection: It is intended by the parties to this Agreement that McMahon’s services in connection with the project shall not subject McMahon's 
individual employees, officers, or directors to any personal legal exposure for the risks associated with this project. Therefore, and notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary contained herein, the Client agrees that as the Client's sole and exclusive remedy, any claim, demand, or suit shall be directed and/or asserted 
only against McMahon, a Wisconsin corporation, and not against any of McMahon’s employees, officers, or directors. 

8.7 Contingency: McMahon’s professional services are not a warranty or guarantee. The project will evolve and be refined over time. The Client shall provide 
appropriate contingency for design and construction costs consistent with the reasonable progression of the project. The Client and McMahon agree that 
revisions due to design clarifications or omissions which result in changes in work during the construction phase which amount to 5% or less of construction 
costs shall be deemed within the contingency and consistent with the professional standard of care. The Client agrees to make no claim for costs related to 
changes in work within this threshold. Claims in excess of this threshold shall be resolved per the dispute resolution process. 

8.8 Project Costs Associated with Agency Plan Review: McMahon will not be responsible for additional project costs due to changes to the design, construction 
documents, and specifications resulting from the agency plan review process. The project schedule shall either allow for the agency plan review process to 
occur prior to the Bid Phase or if this review occurs after the Bid Phase the Client agrees that any additional costs would be considered part of the project 
contingency. 

8.9 Hazardous Materials: McMahon shall have no responsibility for the discovery, presence, handling, removal, or disposal of, or exposure of person to, 
hazardous materials or toxic substance in any form at the project site. 

8.10 Climate: Design standards which exceed the minimum requirements within current codes and regulations are excluded. If requested by the Client, climate-
related design services or evaluations can be provided for additional compensation. 



 

W \ McM-Info \ Proposal SOQ \ 2024 Fee & Reimbursable Expenses Schedules \ McM-All Offices \ 2024 \ 2024 McM Fee Schedule 

McMahon Associates, Inc. Effective: 01/01/2024 
 

LABOR CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE 

Principal $205.00  

Senior Project Manager $205.00  

Project Manager $145.00 - $195.00  
Senior Engineer  $185.00 - $195.00  

Engineer $105.00 - $175.00 

Senior Engineering Technician $135.00 - $145.00 

Engineering Technician $75.00 - $125.00 

Senior Architect $170.00 - $190.00 
Architect $145.00 - $165.00 

Senior Designer $120.00 - $140.00 

Designer $90.00 - $110.00 

Senior Land Surveyor $130.00 - $170.00 

Land Surveyor $120.00 
Land Surveyor Technician $85.00 - $105.00 

Surveyor Apprentice $70.00 

Erosion Control Technician $90.00 

Senior Hydrogeologist $205.00 

Senior Ecologist $195.00 

Environmental Scientist $100.00 - $115.00 
Senior G.I.S. Analyst $170.00 

G.I.S. Analyst $95.00 - $115.00 

Wetland Delineator $115.00 

Senior Public Management Specialist $160.00 

Public Management Specialist $130.00 
Senior Public Safety Specialist $160.00 

Public Safety Specialist $130.00 

Building Inspector Specialist $130.00 

Water / Wastewater Specialist $105.00 - $135.00 

Senior On-Site Project Representative $120.00 
On-Site Project Representative $60.00 - $105.00 

K-12 Administrative Specialist $125.00 

State Plan Reviewer $145.00 

Certified Grant Specialist $145.00 

Graphic Designer $110.00 
Senior Administrative Assistant $95.00 - $105.00 

Administrative Assistant $85.00 

Intern $45.00 - $70.00 

Professional Witness Services $370.00 
 

NEENAH, WISCONSIN 
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

Street Address: 
1445 McMAHON DRIVE 
NEENAH, WI  54956 

Mailing Address: 
P.O. BOX 1025 
NEENAH, WI  54957-1025 

Ph 920.751.4200  | Fax 920.751.4284 

Email: MCM@MCMGRP.COM 
Web: WWW.MCMGRP.COM 
 
 
1700 HUTCHINS ROAD 
MACHESNEY PARK, IL  61115 

Ph 815.636.9590  | Fax 815.636.9591 

Email: MCMAHON@MCMGRP.NET 
Web: WWW.MCMGRP.COM 
 
 
952 SOUTH STATE ROAD 2 
VALPARAISO, IN  46385 

Ph 219.462.7743  | Fax 219.464.8248 

Email: MCM@MCMGRP-IN.COM 
Web: WWW.MCMGRP.COM 

This Fee Schedule is subject to revisions 
due to labor rate adjustments and 
interim staff or corporate changes. 

http://www.mcmgrp.com/


 

W \ McM-Info \ Proposal SOQ \ 2024 Fee & Reimbursable Expenses Schedules \ McM-All Offices \ 2024 \ 2024 McM Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 

McMahon Associates, Inc. Effective: 01/01/2024 

 

DESCRIPTION  RATE 
  
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES:  

Commercial Travel 1.1 of Cost 

Delivery & Shipping 1.1 of Cost 

Meals & Lodging 1.1 of Cost 

Review & Submittal Fees 1.1 of Cost 

Outside Consultants 1.12 of Cost 

Photographs & Models 1.1 of Cost 

Misc. Reimbursable Expenses & Project Supplies 1.1 of Cost 

Terrestrial Laser Scanner $1,500.00 

  
REIMBURSABLE UNITS:  

Copy Charges - Black & White $0.08/Image 

Copy Charges - Color / 8½” x 11”  $0.45/Image 

Copy Charges - Color / 8½” x 14” and 11” x 17”  $0.75/Image 

Mileage $0.75/Mile 

Mileage - Truck/Van $1.05/Mile 

All-Terrain Vehicle $100.00/Day 

Global Positioning System (GPS) $21.00/Hour 

Hand-Held Global Positioning System (GPS) $15.00/Hour 

Robotic Total Station $20.00/Hour 

Survey Hubs $0.45/Each 

Survey Lath $0.80/Each 

Survey Paint $6.00/Can 

Survey Ribbon $3.00/Roll 

Survey Rebars - 1¼“ $10.00/Each 

Survey Rebars - ¾”  $3.50/Each 

Survey Rebars - ⅝” $3.00/Each 

Survey Iron Pipe - 1” $4.50/Each 

Survey Steel Fence Post - 1” $7.75/Each 

Control Spikes $1.75/Each 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

* This schedule is not all inclusive. 

NEENAH, WISCONSIN 
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

Street Address: 
1445 McMAHON DRIVE 
NEENAH, WI  54956 

Mailing Address: 
P.O. BOX 1025 
NEENAH, WI  54957-1025 

Ph 920.751.4200  | Fax 920.751.4284 

Email: MCM@MCMGRP.COM 
Web: WWW.MCMGRP.COM 
 
 
1700 HUTCHINS ROAD 
MACHESNEY PARK, IL  61115 

Ph 815.636.9590  | Fax 815.636.9591 

Email: MCMAHON@MCMGRP.NET 
Web: WWW.MCMGRP.COM 
 
 
952 SOUTH STATE ROAD 2 
VALPARAISO, IN  46385 

Ph 219.462.7743  | Fax 219.464.8248 

Email: MCM@MCMGRP-IN.COM 
Web: WWW.MCMGRP.COM 

http://www.mcmgrp.com/

	07-29-24 agenda.pdf
	07-22-2024 Board Minutes.pdf
	Building Inspector Contract RBC.pdf
	MSA Kimberly RFP.pdf
	McMahon Kimberly Building Inspections Proposal.pdf

